Montgomery County Courthouse Historic District

2. Location

street & number: Courthouse Square and South Washington Street, N/A not for publication

city, town: Rockville, N/A vicinity of Eighth Congressional District

state: Maryland, code 24, county Montgomery, code 031

3. Classification

Category: X district, building(s)

Ownership: X public, both

Status: X occupied, work in progress

Present Use: X agriculture, X commercial

X museum, X park

educational, entertainment

X government, transportation

X religious, scientific

X industrial, military

X other:

4. Owner of Property

name: See Continuation Sheet No. 1. (less than 50)

street & number:

city, town: Rockville, __ vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.: Montgomery County Courthouse

street & number: Courthouse Square

city, town: Rockville, state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

Maryland Historical Trust

Historic Sites Inventory has this property been determined eligible? X yes __ no

date: 1984

__ federal __ state X county __ local

depository for survey records: Maryland Historical Trust, 21 State Circle

city, town: Annapolis, state Maryland 21401
OWNERS OF PROPERTY:

Montgomery County, Maryland
The Hon. Charles W. Gilchrist
County Executive - Montgomery County
101 Monroe Street
Rockville, Maryland

Farmers' Banking & Trust Company
c/o James P. Moylan, Regional Vice President
First National Bank of Maryland
1 Bank Street
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

Mr. Paul Onstad
Director of Historic Preservation
General Services Administration
Washington, D. C. 20405-001

c/o James Wharton, Esq.
100 South Washington Street
Rockville, Maryland 20850

John T. Bell, et al
101 West Jefferson Street
Rockville, Maryland 20850

Dr. William Linthicum
110 South Washington Street
Rockville, Maryland 20850

Sunderland Joint Venture
c/o Albert E. Brault, et al
101 South Washington Street
Rockville, Maryland 20850

Rita Veall, Secretary
Vestry of Prince George's Parish
Christ Episcopal Church
109 South Washington Street
Rockville, Maryland 20850
The Montgomery County Courthouse Historic District is focused on what remains of Rockville's old commercial, governmental and residential center. The district is linked visually and aesthetically by a uniformity of building designs, scale, materials, and setting. The district characterized also by large trees along the street and surrounding the courthouse. The two courthouses, an 1891 red brick Romanesque Revival structure and a 1931 Neo Classical granite building with an 1960s addition; the 1939 Georgian styled Post Office of limestone construction, and the 1930 Art Deco stone structure built for the Farmers Banking and Trust Company are boldly proportioned masonry structures in an almost park-like setting with trees and lawn that visually dominate and set the character of the area. The residential section to the south consists of seven late nineteenth and early twentieth century frame Victorian and Georgian or Colonial Revival upper middle income houses that are fairly uniform in scale, materials and design, and placement along a tree-lined street with brick and concrete sidewalks. A mid 1880s Gothic brick Episcopal church stands at the south end of the residential section. The general historical character of the district along the north end is fragmented because of demolition and new construction but because of the scale and massing of the historic buildings that remain in this section, a sense of time and place from the early to mid twentieth century is clearly felt. A bronze statue of a standing soldier with folded arms mounted on a stone base commemorating the Confederate soldier stands near the 1891 courthouse.
1. The 1891 Red Brick Courthouse was designed in the Romanesque Revival style popular for public buildings at the end of the 19th century. Baltimore architect Frank E. Davis combined steeply pitched rooflines, a large square tower, semi-circular arches, varied textures and colors and horizontal bands into an imposing public structure suitable for a County experiencing a major growth spurt. The exterior is virtually unaltered.

The rectangular Courthouse faces north onto what was once Rockville's main street. Built on granite ashlar block foundations on a sloping site, the Courthouse is constructed of red pressed handmade brick and Seneca sandstone. The exterior walls are 24" thick at the base. The overall dimensions of the common-bond outside walls are 104' x 64', with the long dimension along a north-south axis.

On the north (front) elevation, nine wide granite steps lead to the double wood (original) doors of the main entrance at the second floor level of the tower. This facade features a six-story square tower, which above the entrance has two tall rectangular windows flanked by applied brick columns and separated by an engaged sandstone column; these windows are surmounted by a semi-circular stained glass window and set into a rusticated sandstone arch with a cut keystone. At the third level there is a triple window set into three rusticated sandstone arches. At the fourth level there is a horizontal opening with a sandstone rectangular frame enclosing three windows separated by sandstone columns. At the fifth level, on each facade, there is a round window divided into four quarters, with two sandstone downspouts above. The sixth level is open, featuring small balconies with heavy ornate copperclad railings on three sides, and two sandstone columnettes on each of the four sides. The tower has a pyramidal roof covered with slate and topped with a copper-clad apex.

The main roof of the Courthouse is hipped and covered with slate; there is a cross gable on the east and west elevations. On the east and west gable ends are two sandstone stringer courses and two small round-headed windows with brick arches. The roof eaves flare slightly out over the denticulated cornice line.

The Courthouse has one-over-one double-hung windows with rusticated sandstone lintels and sills. Windows on the second and third floors are 5' wide by 9' high, while those on the first floor are smaller. At the third floor on the east and west facades are four large stained glass windows, surmounted by a circular sandstone arch with carved keystone and springblocks.

On the interior, all of the original walls are solid brick; finish plaster was applied directly to them. A 9' wide central corridor lined with original wainscotting runs the length of the building on the first and second floors. Ceilings are plaster with plaster crown mouldings. On the first level, the floors are concrete slabs on grade; the second and third levels have wood on wood joists, except for the second floor corridor which is terrazzo on a concrete and clay tile floor system. Doors to the corridors are highlighted by panelled jambs and
GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

multipaneled doors; many are topped with transoms, and a few on the second level retain original hardware and hugs pins at the entrances.

The largest space is on the third level, where vaulted plaster ceilings rising 25' above the floor, semi-circular stained glass windows, entrance with heavy denticulated cornice, and large carved wooden trusses combine to provide the sense of time and place of a late 19th century courtroom. The County Government intends to remove modern intrusions such as panelling and restore this as ceremonial space.

When the 1891 Courthouse was renovated in 1975, the County took care to preserve most of the original details. The vaulted plaster ceilings in the courtroom were repaired, and wood floors were covered with carpet. Original windows were reglazed and rotted wood trim was replaced. Iron grilles and dampers of the original ventilation system were left in place, and some plaster ceilings remained undisturbed over modern suspended acoustical tile ceilings. The heavy timber roof framing trusses were left intact. Some original doors and hardware are still in use, and two shallow fireplace mantels were retained. The exterior was cleaned and masonry joints repointed.

The 1891 building sits on a landscaped site, with a lawn on two sides and a few old hardwood trees. On the east side stands a statue of a Confederate soldier looking south. The lawn slopes down to a low stone wall edging the sidewalk at the front of the building.

2. Attached to the west by a brick connector is the 1931 Neo-Classical style "Grey Courthouse." This large-scale two-story structure was built of Indiana limestone blocks. The L-shaped building includes the original north-facing symmetrical block and a west-facing wing added in 1961. Both blocks are of steel frame construction.

The main (north) entrance to the Grey Courthouse is through a projecting pedimented hexa-style portico. The gabled roof of the portico, which features classical revival entablature and denticulation, is supported by six Ionic columns. The frieze bears the words "Montgomery County Courthouse" and the architrave below states the date "1931." Wide exterior steps form the base of the portico.

Applied pilasters separate each bay of the north facade and extend a full two stories. The first and second stories are separated by a simple rectangle within a rectangle within a rectangle shallow design between the pilasters. Windows throughout the building are six-over-six, and the flat roof is hidden behind a simple entablature.
Inside, the entrance lobby is decorated with Classical Revival detailing - brass elevator doors with Montgomery County seals, brass trim and decorative light fixture. The largest Courtroom, Courtroom One, located on the third floor in original condition, is of fine proportion with double height windows, wood panelling, plastered ceilings and attractive woodwork in the pews and judge's bench.

The total area of the Grey Courthouse is 80,000 square feet, containing offices, courtrooms and a jail, which is skillfully concealed from the street level with windows behind the masonry parapet.

The site is landscaped to the north, south and west with attractive stone walls and some significant large trees.

The business district ran east-west on East Montgomery Avenue and Commerce Lane, spanning approximately eight blocks. It included a variety of architectural styles and uses: institutional buildings executed in brick, small frame residences, two late 19th century hotels, diner, pool halls and small restaurants, an Art Deco theatre. Original construction and updating ranged from the mid-19th through the mid-20th centuries, and the scale remained that of a small County seat. Ultimately, in the 1960s, traffic, parking and economic problems led City officials to choose redevelopment of the 45-acre area; this resulted in virtually complete demolition of the older buildings, which were replaced by an enclosed mall.

3. The First National Bank of Maryland - originally the Farmers' Banking and Trust Company - represents the only surviving Art Deco building in the City of Rockville. Its location, at #4 Courthouse Square, is also significant as representing the older business district which was destroyed in urban renewal.

The building was erected in 1930, and the architects were Tilghman Moyer & Company. The simple lines of the building make it a classic example of the synthesis of Neo-classical and Art Deco that James Goode of the Smithsonian Institution has recently termed "Greco-Deco," whereby a stripped neoclassical structure was adorned with decorative elements inspired by the Paris Exposition of 1925: "L'Exposition Internationale Des Arts Decoratifs Et Industriels Modernes." The two-story building faces south and was constructed of brick with granite facing. The roof, though flat, has a stepped effect and the granite slabs feature carved ornamentation. On the east and west sides are five rectangular, vertical windows separated by flush columns whose capitals feature Art Deco motifs of a floral character. Within the vertical window shafts, the rectangular first-story windows and square second-story windows are separated by metal spandrels featuring additional Art Deco motifs carved across the west side above the windows is the original name of the bank, now covered by a sign using the present name. On the south side of the building are three additional window shafts, and at the bottom of the middle shaft is the entrance and doorway surrounded by a carved frame: pilaster-like posts, joined by a two-level pediment-like central panel, with five vertical panels of ornamental grillwork on the lower portion.
GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

(immediately over the doors) and an upper triangle portion with intricate Art Deco motifs. Additional decorative carvings are featured at the upper corners of the building where stylized eagles are depicted above a simple Deco floral or plant motif.

Inside, the Deco ornamentation is continued in the frame surrounding the vault (which also features an Art Deco clock), the security railings in front of the vault, the east and west ceiling runners and the marble mouldings of the entrance door. Finally, an excellent Art Deco chandelier is featured in the bank.

To the east of the main three-bay facade is a one-bay, slightly recessed section. Upstairs, which is entered by a small door on the south facade of this section, are a staircase and elevator which lead to several small offices above the bank (once provided for bank officers). The hall and office walls have been covered by panelling, but each wood and glass entrance door retains its transom.

4. The 1939 English Style Georgian style Post Office sits on the corner of Washington and Montgomery Streets. The style is unusual for the time and location. It is five bays along South Washington Street by six bays deep, one story high with corner tower, of brick and limestone material, with full basement.

The most distinguished architectural feature is a two story hexagonal entrance tower. The tower makes a strong image both visually and functionally. Visually, the tower marks the intersection of these important streets. Functionally, one gains entrance to the Post Office through the tower.

The two-tiered tower, with its arched openings and arched windows, and the two major wings are faced with limestone. The clay tiled roof tower is pitched and capped by a small carved stone finial. The two identical wings radiate from the tower at 90°, parallel to either street, and end with an apsidal niche. Each wing is divided by limestone pilasters, and a limestone entablature unifies the entire facade hiding the flat roof. In addition to the niche, each wing has three large rectangular 12-over-12 double hung windows.

The wing along Washington Street forms the public postal lobby, while the wing along Montgomery Avenue is comprised of administrative offices. The remaining interior block of the building supports the post office functions, giving an overall square footprint. Loading docks are located at the rear of the building.

The spacious postal lobby has 15-foot ceilings, the original bulletin boards and brass and glass postal boxes, and a handsome painted mural depicting a view across Montgomery County to Sugarloaf Mountain. A mezzanine overlooks the lobby as well as the main work area, providing a vantage point from which the supervisor could oversee without being seen. The remaining interior has been divided into smaller offices. The Building now houses the post office (Courthouse Station”) and recruiting offices for the U. S. Military.

See Continuation Sheet No. 6
The eight buildings on South Washington Street display a variety of vernacular interpretations of architectural styles from the late 19th and early 20th centuries. The pedestrian scale, rhythm and spacing of the buildings, large trees and a brick sidewalk on the east side of the street create a pleasant and peaceful streetscape.

On the east side:
5. **100 South Washington Street** is a 2½ story Queen Anne style frame house. It is dominated by a square corner tower, and has a gable front with decorative shingle, front and side porches, German siding and several rear additions. Erected 1893.

6. **104 South Washington Street** is a 2½ story gable front and wing, L-shaped frame house with a two-story rear addition. Major alteration in the 1950s replaced Eastlake ornamentation with Greek Revival stylistic characteristics. Erected 1884.

7. **108 South Washington Street** is a 2½ story gable front four-bay by two-bay frame cottage. Its basic Greek Revival features are complemented by Eastlake detailing on a wraparound porch. There are two rear additions. Erected 1902.

8. **110 South Washington Street** is a 2½ story, three-bay by three-bay frame dwelling designed in the Colonial Revival style. It is decorated with classical elements, has a large front porch, projecting central bay with Palladian window, and is unaltered. Erected 1903.

On the west side of South Washington Street:
9. **101 South Washington Street** is a five-bay by two-bay 2½ story frame house which was enlarged in 1909 and redesigned in the Georgian Revival style. The house displays balanced form, central gable with Palladian window, large interior end chimneys, striated clapboard and two rear additions. Erected 1884.

10. **105 South Washington Street** is a 2½ story vernacular frame building executed in the Queen Anne style. There is a large three-bay two-story turret on the southeast corner. The rectangular house is covered with asbestos shingle. Erected 1887.

11. **107 South Washington Street** is a 2½ story, L-shaped vernacular frame Victorian house. The front facade is dominated by a wide three-bay gable end, and the house has eclectic Greek Revival and Queen Anne characteristics. Erected 1887.

12. **Christ Episcopal Church at 109 South Washington Street**, is a common-bonded red brick Gothic-style structure. The west-facing front facade has a steeply pitched gable in the north bay, covered with a patterned slate roof; there is a large stained glass window above the double entrance doors. The south bay is a three-tiered brick tower with steeple. The church was built in 1884-1887. The parish hall built in 1926 and the educational building constructed in 1956 are connected to the church.
8. Significance

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Period</th>
<th>Areas of Significance—Check and justify below</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>prehistoric</td>
<td>archeology-prehistoric</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1400-1499</td>
<td>archeology-historic</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1500-1599</td>
<td>agriculture</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1600-1699</td>
<td>architecture</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1700-1799</td>
<td>art</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1800-1899</td>
<td>commerce</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1900+</td>
<td>communications</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

Specific dates: mid-19th c.-1939  Builder/Architect: multiple

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Applicable Criteria: A, C
Applicable Exceptions: G
Significance Evaluated: local, state

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY:

The Montgomery County Courthouse Historic District is significant both historically and architecturally. Although modern redevelopment has encroached upon the district and resulted in some fragmentation, the district retains sufficient integrity to reflect the growth and development of Rockville, the seat of Montgomery County, from the mid-19th century to the era of World War II. The district comprises a cohesive collection of civic, commercial, and residential buildings within an area of two city blocks; the close juxtaposition of these various building types is characteristic of small county seats of the period in Maryland and elsewhere, as the establishment of important centers of business and government fostered the development of middle-to-upper-income housing on the immediately adjacent streets. The civic/commercial and residential sections are strongly linked visually and aesthetically, characterized by buildings exemplifying late 19th and early 20th century architectural styles, complementary in design, scale, materials, and setting. The setting is enhanced by mature trees lining the streets and surrounding the courthouse. The focus of the district is the courthouse square, location of governmental activity continuously for 200 years; on this site stand the 1891 and 1931 courthouses, Montgomery County's third and fourth courthouses respectively. The 1891 courthouse, a red brick building designed by prominent Baltimore architect Frank E. Davis, represents the best example of Victorian Romanesque architecture in the county. Its successor is constructed of limestone in the Neoclassical tradition. The district also comprises the First National Bank (formerly Farmers' Banking and Trust Company) building, Rockville's only surviving example of Art Deco influence, and the English Georgian style Post Office. Although the 1939 post office is less than 50 years old, it is exceptionally significant within the context of the district as Rockville's first permanent post office building and the last major public edifice constructed in the city prior to World War II. The houses along South Washington Street reflect vernacular Victorian and Revival styles popular around the turn of the 20th century, exemplifying the type of dwelling favored by professionals in the period who chose to reside in close proximity to the civic and commercial center of town.

For History and Supporting Documentation, see Continuation Sheet No. 7
HISTORY AND SUPPORT:

On September 6, 1776, the Maryland Constitutional Convention passed a resolution which divided Frederick County into three parts. The southern portion became Montgomery County, named for the patriot, General Richard Montgomery, who was killed at Quebec, December 21, 1775. At an election held to select the new County seat, what became the City of Rockville was chosen for its central location within the new County, its location along an established road, and the existence of taverns to accommodate travelers and those with court and government business.

The first Court was held on May 20, 1777, "at the house of Leonard Davis" (exact location unknown); Davis was instructed to provide for the "reception of prisoners" and for a permanent courthouse. In 1779, Thomas Owen Williams, owner of the land designated for the Courthouse, proposed improvements for repairing the "house they sitt in" and the jail; Benjamin Ray erected a new whipping post, stocks and pillory. How long they met in this converted house is unknown, but in the 1783 Assessment Records, Williams is noted as the owner of "Young Man's Delight" containing 200 acres and improved by "1 framed Courthouse, 3 framed dwelling houses and 4 old out houses." Rockville, in 1800, had a population of 200.

This early Court dealt with such issues as indecent behavior, felony, care of orphans, apprenticeship and slavery, illegitimate children, road building, tavern licenses, deeds, wills, and marriage licenses. At specific times, the Court sat as a Levy Court to authorize expenditures of County business and to set the County tax. The description of the first Courthouse is lost to history, but it was sufficiently outgrown by 1810 to necessitate a separate building for the Court Clerk and his records. Commissioners were appointed to "locate and superintend the laying of a Lot or parcel of land...to build a Courthouse and prison for the use of the aforesaid County," and 2-7/8 acres were acquired for that purpose.

In 1835, the County petitioned the Maryland General Assembly to authorize a new Courthouse, which was completed in 1840. By that time, Rockville was an established residential, governmental and market center, with a population of 400 which included doctors, many people connected with the Courthouse, merchants and farmers. The town boasted a private boys' school (The Rockville Academy), a newspaper, the annual County fair, twice-weekly stage coaches, six churches, hotels and boarding houses, and a business area centered around the Courthouse. The Courthouse's original one-story wings were raised in 1872 to provide more space, and the property was enclosed by an iron fence.

Following the opening of the Metropolitan Branch of the B & O Railroad through Montgomery County in 1873, thousands of acres of farmland were subdivided into building lots, and developers, investors, speculators, and new residents increased
HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued)

County population and Courthouse business severalfold. During the first decade of Rockville's building "boom," the population more than doubled, from 688 in 1880 to 1568 in 1890. The growth impact overloaded the Courthouse. A building committee was appointed, and construction on the new fireproof brick and sandstone Courthouse began.

The new Courthouse was designed by Baltimore architect Frank E. Davis, who utilized the Romanesque Revival style then popular for public buildings, not realizing that it would soon be overpowered by the Chicago Exposition's influence. In addition to being the last building of this architectural style constructed in Montgomery County, the Courthouse was also one of the last masonry-bearing structures erected here. Davis used Romanesque to emphasize the importance of the Courthouse, also including carved Seneca sandstone quarried in Montgomery County to recognize the locality.

Architect Davis (1839-1921) designed churches, schools, police stations, jails and private homes in Maryland before leaving the state in 1914. Thomas P. Johns of Baltimore was the builder. Construction costs were approximately $45,000.

The 1891 Courthouse became the center of activity in Rockville and Montgomery County. Tuesday was "Court Day," when the County Commissioners, the Orphans' Court and other government agencies held their regular sessions. Circuit Court sessions in March and November attracted lawyers, jurors, litigants and other interested parties. Two local hotels provided rooms, livery services and meals for all involved. Rockville was known as a "Gretna Green," for as many as 150 couples married at the Courthouse each month. Most attorneys maintained offices around the Courthouse square, and the Courthouse was the scene of many ceremonial events. The Courthouse faced onto East Montgomery Avenue, Rockville's main or "front" street which had housed its commerce and industry since the early 19th century. The Courthouse held Rockville's fire engine and siren from 1922-1926.

As the County population increased after World War I, and County governmental business grew correspondingly, the pressing need for a larger Courthouse could no longer be ignored. The County Commissioners appointed a committee to recommend alterations or additions to the existing Courthouse, and the group suggested a new building. In 1927, the Legislature approved $300,000 to acquire the land between Court and Washington Streets, Montgomery Avenue and Jefferson Street, to raze the buildings on that square, and to construct a new Courthouse. Delos H. Smith and Thomas H. Edwards of Washington designed the new building in the Neoclassic tradition, and J. J. McDevitt Company of Charlotte, North Carolina constructed the new Courthouse of Indiana limestone. A brick "hyphen" connected the two Courthouses. After the Circuit Court and other departments were moved to the 1931 Courthouse, the 1891 Courthouse was used for the Peoples' Court, Police Headquarters, the Surveyor's office, tax office and other County offices. Rockville's population multiplied dramatically following the second World War. In 1950, there were 6900 residents; in 1954, 12,000; in 1960, 25,000.
HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued)

The County government moved its offices out of the Courthouse in 1953. An addition was made to the south of the 1931 Courthouse in 1958-1961 to house additional offices and courtrooms. In the late 1960s, the Montgomery County Council allocated funds to raze the 1891 Courthouse, but citizen protest induced it to reverse that position and renovate it for modern needs. The People's (later District) Court's Chief Clerk's Administrative Office, Civil, Traffic, and Parole and Probation Divisions moved out of the old Courthouse in 1970. The Courthouse was completely vacated in March 1971 when the Chief Judge's Chambers and Criminal Division relocated to an intended interim Shady Grove/Rockville location. This move represented the last time the Red Courthouse was used for Court purposes, thus ending its eighty-one year continuous judicial career.

The 1931 Courthouse was used by the Circuit Court until a fifth Montgomery County Courthouse ("Judicial Center") was dedicated in 1982. This Courthouse was the first to be constructed solely with local County funds and without State bonds. It cost $21 million.

The 1891 Courthouse will soon house County uses compatible with its historic character, and the 1931 Courthouse will be renovated for occupancy by the Peoples' Court's successor, the District Court.

To the east of the Red Brick Courthouse stands a statue of a Confederate soldier, thought to be the farthest north such statue not related to a battlefield. Rockville provided soldiers for both sides during the Civil War, as did most Maryland towns, but sympathies of the majority here lay with the Confederacy. In 1913, the Ridgeley Brown Chapter, CSA, erected this monument. As Col. Spencer C. Jones contributed the largest amount of money toward the statue, his likeness was the model for the head. During urban renewal, the statue was transferred from its location in a triangle formerly situated just north of the Red Brick Courthouse to its present location.

Among the structures and institutions displaced by construction of the 1931 Courthouse was the Farmers' Banking and Trust Company. Organized in 1900 by eight prominent Rockville men, by the following year the new bank was sufficiently prosperous to be able to pay dividends to its stockholders and to erect a building at the corner of Court Street and Montgomery Avenue. When the property was purchased for the new Courthouse, the bank purchased two lots on the north side of Commerce Lane (East Montgomery Avenue) and appointed Tilghman Moyer of Allentown, Pennsylvania, to design a new building.

The new Farmers' Banking and Trust Company building was executed in the popular Art Deco style. Construction costs totaled $160,000. The bank's location at the crest of a hill overlooking the County seat's commercial district was prominent indeed. In 1962, Farmers' Banking and Trust Company merged with the First National Bank of Maryland.

See Continuation Sheet No. 10
Although postal service was begun at "Montgomery Courthouse" in 1794, post offices in Rockville have been located in a variety of buildings since that time. By the mid-1930s, the need for a permanent building to house the postal service for the County seat was recognized. $35,000 was paid for the lot on the corner of Montgomery and Washington Streets, and the small frame buildings which had housed the Montgomery County Sentinel newspaper office, press and publisher Matthew Fields since 1855 were demolished. Construction was begun in November 1938, and Rockville's first permanent Post Office building (which cost an additional $32,000) was dedicated with a parade on July 22, 1939.

The small size of the Post Office is related to the perceived importance of Rockville in 1938, but its construction was a source of considerable community pride. The mural of Sugarloaf Mountain was executed by artist Judson Smith of New York in the fall of 1940.

In the 1960s, the City embarked on a 47-acre urban renewal project which eventually caused demolition of most of Rockville's central business district. The only structures which remain are those in this cluster at Courthouse Square and Washington Street.

Residences on the block just south of the Courthouse site were built on four lots of the 1803 Plat of Rockville. Proximity to the Courthouse and commercial center assured early development in this area, and by the late 18th century the two corner lots were built upon. As building continued through the 19th century, both new and replacement buildings were constructed by the town's doctor, county officials and a minister. All seven residences on South Washington Street were built by the Anderson or Stonestreet families. The eight buildings have construction dates between 1884 and 1910, and display a variety of vernacular architectural styles of this period.

On the east side of South Washington Street:

#100 was built c. 1799 by James W. Anderson, M.D., but was razed by his daughter, Julia, in 1803 and replaced with the present structure at that time. #104 was erected by Julia's sister-in-law, Mrs. James A. Anderson, in 1884, and remained in that family until 1939. #108 South Washington Street was constructed in 1902 for John W. Warner, an attorney in Rockville. #110 is known as the Dr. Linthicum house, as it was built in 1903 for Dr. Otis Linthicum who married Ella, a daughter of Dr. Edward Stonestreet.

On the west side of South Washington Street:

#101 was constructed in 1884 to replace a house which had served as Sheriff's office and jail before 1790; Dr. Stonestreet's daughter, Mrs. George Lamar,
HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued)

remodeled the house to its present configuration and style in 1909. #105 and #107 were constructed on land owned by Mrs. Stonestreet's family since 1846; daughter Adelaide Stonestreet Greene built #105 in 1887 and daughter Martha Stonestreet Abert built #107 in 1905.

The present Christ Episcopal Church has occupied #109 South Washington Street since 1884-1887. The Gothic-style church replaced one built on the site in 1821. A Parish Hall was erected in 1926, and Educational Building in 1956, and #107 was purchased for use as the parsonage in 1955.

Today, five of the former Stonestreet and Anderson residences have been adapted for use as law offices, and Dr. Stonestreet's grandson continues to live in #110.

MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES:

Land & Assessment Records of Montgomery County, Maryland


Malcolm Walter, official photographs for Courthouse construction, 1930-1.

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA:

Verbal Boundary Description: The boundaries of the Montgomery County Courthouse Historic District conform to the existing (1986) property and curb lines of those properties shown on the enclosed Sketch Map. Specifically, these boundaries are the east property lines of 100 through 110 Washington Street; the south property lines of 109 and 110 Washington Street; the west property lines of 101 through 109 Washington Street; the north property line of 101 Washington Street; the curb line of Washington Street from 110 Washington Street on the south to the south property line of the U. S. Post Office on Washington Street at Montgomery Avenue (southwest corner); the south, west, and north property lines of the post office parcel; the curb line on Montgomery Avenue from the north property line of the post office to the west line of the old Farmers Banking and Trust Co., number 4; the west and east property lines of the bank parcel and the north side of the bank building; the curblines east from the bank parcel, wrapping southeast and east along the 1931 and 1891 courthouses, and extending west along Jefferson Street to the east property line of 100 Washington Street where this description begins.

Boundary Justification: The boundaries of the Montgomery County Courthouse Historic District are drawn to encompass the concentration of resources that contribute to the historical and aesthetic character of the district. The boundaries are also drawn to avoid, where possible, inclusion of those buildings and areas surrounding the district that do not contribute to this character. The district consists primarily of residential, commercial, and civic buildings in Classical and Victorian styles in a setting characterized by large mature trees and a small town feeling. It is surrounded by large scale modern buildings and vacant land that are the result of a mid-twentieth century urban renewal program. The district divides into two sections: the commercial and civic buildings to the north of Jefferson Street and the primarily residential structures to the south. These sections are connected historically and visually. Historically the residential area developed as home to prominent business and government officials who wanted to be within close proximity of the downtown area. Visually, the residential section looks into the downtown area as it still does. The site of the new building to the south of the Post Office historically contained a church and auxiliary building that were set back from the street surrounded by open space. This open feeling still exists as the new building is also set back with open space surrounding it. Historically, the district always has been bordered on the west and southwestern sides by free-standing buildings in a rural setting or suburban setting not like the urban nature of this district. Montgomery Avenue in front of the courthouses and to the east of the bank was lined with commercial structures abutting each other. To the east were free-standing commercial buildings spaced wide apart.
9. Major Bibliographical References

See Continuation Sheet No. 11

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property approximately 7 acres

Quadrangle name Rockville, MD

Quadrangle scale 1:24000

UTM References

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>Zone</th>
<th>Easting</th>
<th>Northing</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>A</td>
<td>11</td>
<td>41328</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td>11</td>
<td>1415</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>B</td>
<td>11</td>
<td>41328</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td>11</td>
<td>1150</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>C</td>
<td>11</td>
<td>31172</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td>11</td>
<td>1720</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>D</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>E</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>F</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>G</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

Verbal boundary description and justification

See Continuation Sheet No. 12.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>state</th>
<th>code</th>
<th>county</th>
<th>code</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>N/A</td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
<td></td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

11. Form Prepared By

Eileen McGuckian, Dwayne Jones, John McNickle,
William Neudorfer, Glen Lerner, Richard Griner

organization Peerless Rockville
date March 1985

street & number P. O. Box 4262
telephone (301) 762-0096

city or town Rockville
state Maryland 20850

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

   ___ national   ___ state   X local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

For NPS use only
I hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

Keeper of the National Register

Attest:

Chief of Registration
MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>NAME</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>HISTORIC</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>AND/OR COMMON</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Court House Historic District</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>LOCATION</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>STREET &amp; NUMBER</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>bounded (approximately) by: E. Montgomery Ave. on the north;</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Perry St. on the east; Vinson St. on (Rockville)</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>VICTINY OF</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>CITY, TOWN</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Rockville</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STATE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Maryland</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>COUNTY</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>(County-Montgomery)</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PUBLIC ACQUISITION</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>the west side of Washington St.</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>CLASSIFICATION</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>CATEGORY</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>DISTRICT</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>BUILDING(S)</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STRUCTURE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SITE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OBJECT</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OWNERSHIP</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PUBLIC</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PRIVATE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>BOTH</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PUBLIC ACQUISITION</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>IN PROCESS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>BEING CONSIDERED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STATUS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OCCUPIED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>UNOCCUPIED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>WORK IN PROGRESS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>ACCESSIBLE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>YES: RESTRICTED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>YES: UNRESTRICTED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>NO</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OWNERSHIP</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PUBLIC</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PRIVATE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>BOTH</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PUBLIC ACQUISITION</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>IN PROCESS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>BEING CONSIDERED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STATUS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OCCUPIED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>UNOCCUPIED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>WORK IN PROGRESS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>ACCESSIBLE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>YES: RESTRICTED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>YES: UNRESTRICTED</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>NO</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PRESENT USE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>AGRICULTURE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>COMMERCIAL</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>EDUCATIONAL</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>ENTERTAINMENT</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>GOVERNMENT</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>INDUSTRIAL</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>MILITARY</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>MUSEUM</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PARK</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>PRIVATE RESIDENCE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>RELIGIOUS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>SCIENTIFIC</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>TRANSPORTATION</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>OTHER</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>OWNER OF PROPERTY</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>NAME</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>County government &amp; private owners</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STREET &amp; NUMBER</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Telephone #:</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>CITY, TOWN</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STATE, zip code</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>COURT HOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC.</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Montgomery County Courthouse</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STREET &amp; NUMBER</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>CITY, TOWN</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Rockville</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STATE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>Maryland</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>TITLE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>LIBER</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>FOLIO</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>DATE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>CITY, TOWN</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>STATE</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

| DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS |
| CITY, TOWN |
| STATE |
This area is dominated by the traditional county government complexes (i.e. the Court House square, and related private buildings such as law offices, etc.) The primary structure here is the Victorian Romanesque, red brick court house, built in 1891. It is a rectangular-shaped block-three-bays wide and eight bays deep. The dominant feature is the four-story tower, set in the main (north) entrance facade. The two, brick stories are set on a high, white granite basement. The hip roof of the main block is broken at mid-point on the sides of the structure, where several projecting bays rise above the main roof in tall, gable-roof sections. These gable sections are trimmed with brown, sandstone parapets, and the same stone is used as trim for the window sills and lintels throughout the building. Most of the window sash is 1 over 1. The roof is covered with slate. Several round-headed windows, trimmed with segmental sandstone arches, occur—particularly in the north facade of the tower. On the east lawn of the court house, is a bronze statue of a Confederate soldier, a memorial to the men of Montgomery County who fought for the South in the Civil War. This statue used to sit in a small park, on the street across from the court house entrance.

Joined to the old court house, on the west, is the Classical Revival, Indiana-limestone court house, built in 1931. The three center bays on the north side form the main entrance, and are covered by an imposing, two-story, pedimented portico of Greek Revival design. Almost opposite this entrance is the early-20th Century Farmers & Mechanics Bank (also faced with light-colored limestone.) This latter building sits on the NE corner of Washington & Montgomery Sts. On the SW corner is the U.S. Post Office, also of Classical Revival design and faced with limestone. This was built in 1939.

Immediately south of the post office, on Washington Street, are/were three brick buildings of the turn-of-the-century period; the last of these being a Gothic-style church on the corner of Washington & Jefferson. This was the location of the historic Hungerford's Tavern, which formed the nucleus of the first county seat in the 18th Century. This was a small, one-story, Southern Maryland-style frame (or weatherboarded log) structure, with large, end-chimneys. It was razed in 1913 to make way for the Baptist Church parsonage (which itself is now being razed along with the other two brick buildings here.)
ROCKVILLE COURT HOUSE HISTORIC DISTRICT

(#7-DESCRIPTION-CON'T.)

The next block south of this corner (Jefferson & Washington to Vinson & Washington) contains what remains of the residential area. This consists mostly of large, turn-of-the-century, two-story frame Victorian and Colonial Revival edifices, that face each other on both sides of S. Washington. There are seven houses (most of which have been converted to law offices, while preserving the original facades) and one church—the Gothic brick Christ Episcopal Church, built in 1887, and the adjacent church hall, built (also of brick) in 1926.

The heart of this district, and of the county seat itself, was the old commercial section of town—formerly located along E. Montgomery Ave. & Middle Lane. These numerous old structures were completely wiped out by Urban Renewal programs in the late-1960's and early-1970's, and replaced by the present white elephant known as Rockville Mall.
**SIGNIFICANCE**

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>PERIOD</th>
<th>AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>PREHISTORIC</td>
<td>ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1400-1499</td>
<td>ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1500-1599</td>
<td>AGRICULTURE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1600-1699</td>
<td>ARCHITECTURE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1700-1799</td>
<td>ART</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1800-1899</td>
<td>COMMERCE</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1900</td>
<td>COMMUNICATIONS</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>

SPECIFIC DATES

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This area includes the 200 year old seat of Montgomery County government, which continues to function in buildings that represent several diverse styles of classical revival architecture.
MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

1) Thompson, Noma. WESTERN GATEWAY TO THE NATIONAL CAPITAL, (1950).
2) PEERLESS ROCKVILLE, 1890 real estate promotional booklet.
4) Scharf. HISTORY OF WESTERN MD. (1882).
5) MONT. CO. STORY, (May, 1958, May, 1960, etc.) by the Mont.
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY Co. Historical Society.

GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

BIBLIOGRAPHY (CON'T.)

6) Betts, Maude. PISCATAWAY TO PRINCE GEORGE'S PARISH, (1975).

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
Michael F. Dwyer, Senior Park Historian

ORGANIZATION
M-NCPPC

DATE
5/14/75

ADDRESS
8787 Georgia Ave.

TELEPHONE
589-1480

CITY OR TOWN
Silver Spring

STATE
Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
walls of which are ELEVEN (11) life size mounted heads of big game animals, many native to Africa, and some from Germany. Remarkable display.

On through this room, in which is a fireplace with rough stone mantel front, we emerge from the house onto a terrace covered with flag-stone. The view from here toward the west is very rural, and restful.

Through a passage, going to the right from hall is the kitchen and dining room, of moderate size, with bright light from windows toward the setting sun. Most of the floors are walnut highly polished.

**Hungerford Tavern**

THE quaint old tavern which stood for nearly a century and a half on a quiet village street corner in the thriving town now known as Rockville has at last received the belated acclaim it so richly deserves in the archives of Montgomery County. On a bronze tablet placed on the site of this historical building, future generations will be sure to read of its glory. They will see, cast in metal, the names of those bold patriots whose acts have consecrated the humble walls and made the memory of the old tavern imperishable.

The sparks of rebellion against oppression and the aspirations for freedom and liberty, kindled in the little tavern will always be a treasured memory to citizens of Maryland. The ringing words of the Governor of our beloved state while unveiling the tablet praised the marking of historical sites. He urged all citizens to cooperate with their governments, federal, state and local, and to “think and act as Marylanders.” The action of early citizens of our free state in calling for cessation of trade with an aggressor was stressed by him as an example to be emulated.

Governor McKeldin warned that we must never let the fires of patriotism which activated our ancestors go out. He illustrated his admonition by a story of an old mountaineer in Tennessee who refused several times to sell his little log cabin in the valley to a public utility which tried to buy it so the valley could be flooded. The engineers, after his repeated refusals to sell, built for him a fine new stone house on a nearby hill and offered it to him as an even trade. The old man continued his refusal to move. He said “my grandfather built this cabin and he told my father never to let the fire in the hearth go out. My father told me the same thing and I have told my son to keep that fire burning as long as he lives and to tell his son to do the same.” Finally the engineers filled a bucket with coals from the humble hearth stone of the cabin and when a fire from them was moved to the new house the old man agreed to follow.

Judge Stedman Prescott, associate justice, Sixth Judicial Circuit, in outlining the history of the tavern to the large assemblage of citizens at the unveiling ceremonies said he knew no one who had definitely determined the date the tavern was built. He expressed the belief after his study of available records that it was built sometime between 1755 and 1771.

The most outstanding event memorialized by the plaque occurred on June 11, 1774.

The exact wording cast into the bronze is as follows:

**HUNGERFORD TAVERN SITE**

**JUNE 11, 1774**

On above date aroused patriots here resolved that every lawful means be used to procure relief from oppressions of the English Parliament, and that the most effectual way to secure American freedom would be to break off all commerce with Great Britain.
Henry Griffith was moderator of this historic meeting.

The following committee was appointed to attend a general meeting in Annapolis.

Henry Griffith  Richard Thomas
Dr. Thomas Sprigg  Zadok Magruder
Wootton  Dr. William Baker
Nathan Magruder  Thomas Cramphin, Jr.
Evan Thomas  Allen Bowie
Richard Brooke

By this bold act these men pledged their lives, their fortunes and their sacred honor and anticipated by two years the Declaration of Independence.

SEPTEMBER 6, 1776

On this day by an act of the General Assembly Montgomery County was established in accordance with a resolution which had been adopted in this building, and here also on May 20, 1777, the first County Court met.

George Washington and General LaFayette tarried here.

This marker placed September 6, 1951.

In celebration of the County’s One Hundred and Seventy-fifth Anniversary.

By

The Montgomery County Historical Society, Inc.

Mrs. Jesse W. Nicholson, President.”

The tavern was apparently built by either Thomas Willson who acquired some of this land or by his son Joseph. Joseph is on record as having rented the building as a tavern in 1774 to Charles Hungerford. The little settlement thereafter became known as “Hungerford’s.” In 1775, Hungerford gave up the place and it was rented to Leonard Davis, son-in-law of Joseph Willson.

The tavern building stood on a plot on the northwest corner of South Washington and Jefferson Streets and had a side to each street. The building faced toward the east on Washington Street.

Rockville was first surveyed in 1784 by William Orme for William Prather Williams who had purchased the land around the future site of the town. He had it laid out in streets and lots and called it Williamsburg. In 1803 the Commissioners caused the resurvey to be made and a plan of the town was made by William Smith, surveyor. At that time the name of Williamsburg was changed to Rockville, apparently to honor Rock Creek, one of the most beautiful streams in the state of Maryland. For many years after this, however, the village went by the name of Montgomery Court House.

From the Willson family the tavern, including three or four lots, passed to the Russel family, great-great-grandchildren of Joseph Willson. For many years it was known as the Russell House until in 1913 when the property was purchased by the Honorable Spencer C. Jones. The Baptist Parsonage and church were then built and stand there today. The tablet supported on steel posts in concrete was placed directly in front of the parsonage.

The old building was described as being a one and one-half story log house of hand hewn logs, mortised and held with dowel pins. Hand made nails and hand rived lath were undoubtedly used and the logs were chinked with stone and mortar. It had a fireplace with pot hooks in a chimney said to have been eight feet wide.1

That Lafayette passed through Rockville in December, 1824, seems to have been established by a member of the Braddock family who recalls seeing the General when the latter stopped at the tavern.

George Washington states that “On Thursday, June 30, 1791, the business which brought me to George Town being finished, I set off this morning a little after four o’clock in persecution of my journey toward Philadelphia and being desirous of seeing the nature of the country north of George Town . . . I resolved to pass through Frederick Town in Maryland . . . . breakfasted in a small village called Williamsburg in which stands Ct. House of Montgomery County, 14 miles from George Town . . . . dined at Peters Tavern 20 miles further and arrived in Frederick Town about sundown the whole distance 43 miles.” 2

1 Mike Nunn Thompson’s History of Rockville.
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURTHOUSE HISTORIC DISTRICT

Rockville
Montgomery County
Maryland

SKETCH MAP 1985

for nomination to the National register of Historic Places

all resources except the 1961 addition contribute to the significance of the district
On Hungerford Resolves Day
June 11, 1976
7:00 P.M.
Court House Square
Rockville, Maryland

Sponsored by
The Rockville Bicentennial Commission
DEDICATION OF BICENTENNIAL PARK

The citizens of Rockville are cordially invited to attend the dedication of the new Bicentennial Park and the rededication of the Old Town Clock, which has been restored and placed in the Park by the Rockville Bicentennial Commission.

The program is set for 7 P.M., June 11, 1976, in Bicentennial Square, Downtown Rockville. The Commission wishes to make the dedication program a celebration shared by all members of the family and urges parents and children to join them on the occasion.

THE PROGRAM

INVOCATION
The Rev. Jack A. Marcom, Jr.
Pastor, First Baptist Church of Rockville

WELCOME AND REMARKS
Mayoert William E. Hanna, Jr.

MUSICAL MEDLEY OF AMERICAN HISTORY
College Gardens Elementary School
Fifth Grade

"THE OLD TOWN CLOCK"
A skit
Assisted by Maureen Duffy & Phoebe Rockwell

ADDRESS
The Honorable James P. Gleason
Montgomery County Executive

DEDICATION CEREMONY
David Porter, Member
Rockville Bicentennial Commission

THE CUTTING OF THE RIBBON
Sharyn Duffin, Member
Rockville Bicentennial Commission

"MY COUNTRY 'TIS OF THEE"
Community Sing led by
Hungerford Resolves Society
Children of American Revolution

BENEDICTION
The Rev. Raymond Greenley
Pastor, Seventh Day Adventist Church

THE ROCKVILLE BICENTENNIAL COMMISSION
Sharyn Duffin Bernice Grossman
Frank Sullivan Eileen McGuckian
David Porter Robert Cotner, Chairman